
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU

Licensing Committee

Members of the Licensing Committee of Gravesham Borough Council are summoned to attend 
a meeting to be held at the Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend, Kent on Monday, 7 March 
2016 at 7.30pm when the business specified in the following agenda is proposed to be transacted.

S Kilkie
Assistant Director (Communities)

Agenda

Part A
Items likely to be considered in Public

1. Apologies 

2. Minutes (Pages 5 - 8)

3. Declarations of Interest 

4. To consider whether any items in Part A of the agenda should be 
considered in private or the items in Part B in public. 

5. Police Licensing Update by DC Gill Angus, North Kent Police Licensing 
Officer 

6. New National Scrap Metal Dealers Database - report herewith. (Pages 9 - 14)

7. Deregulation of Late Night Refreshment - report herewith. (Pages 15 - 20)

8. Response to Gambling Commission consultation on where gaming 
machines can be played - report herewith. 

(Pages 21 - 30)

9. Minutes of Licensing Panel 

a) Minutes of meeting Monday, 14 December 2015 of Licensing Panel (Pages 31 - 34)

b) Minutes of meeting Monday, 11 January 2016 of Licensing Panel (Pages 35 - 38)

c) Minutes of meeting Monday, 25 January 2016 of Licensing Panel (Pages 39 - 42)

Public Document Pack



10.Any Other Business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair is 
of the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency. 

11.Exclusion of the Public 

To move, if required, that pursuant to Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 that the public be excluded from any items 
included in Part B of the agenda because it is likely in view of the nature 
of business to be transacted that if members of the public are present 
during those items, there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 

Part B 
Items likely to be considered in Private

None.

Members

Cllr Harold Craske (Chair)
Cllr Lesley Boycott (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: Gurjit Kaur Bains
Gurdip Ram Bungar
John Caller
Brian Francis
Greta Goatley
Karen Hurdle
Sara Langdale
John Loughlin
Jordan Meade
Leslie Pearton
Peter Scollard
Steve Thompson
Valerie Ashenden

Substitutes: To be notified



1

Licensing Committee

Thursday, 26 November 2015                                    7.30pm

Present:

Cllr Harold Craske (Chair)
Cllr Lesley  Boycott (Vice-Chair)

Cllrs: Valerie Ashenden
Gurjit Kaur Bains
Gurdip Ram Bungar
John Caller
Brian Francis
Karen Hurdle
Sara Langdale
John Loughlin
Jordan Meade
Leslie Pearton
Peter Scollard
Steve Thompson

Also in attendance:

Mr Jim Whiddett, Operations Manager, Kent  Trading Standards

Sarah Kilkie Assistant Director (Communities)
Mark Lees Licensing Manager
Michael Crawford Senior Legal Advisor
Sue Hill Committee & Elections Manager

32. Apologies 

An apology for absence was received from Cllr Greta Goatley.

33. Minutes 

The Chair stated that in respect of Minute 28 Declarations of Interest – the detail should be 
amended to show that his son is the Director of Communications at the Association of British 
Bookmakers.

Subject to the above amendment, the Minutes of the Licensing Committee held on 
28 September 2015 were signed by the Chair.

34. Declarations of Interest 

The Chair declared a personal non-prejudicial interest in that his son is the Director of 
Communications at the Association of British Bookmakers.

Page 3 Agenda Item 2



Licensing Committee 26.11.2015

2

Cllr Thompson declared a personal non-prejudicial interest in that he was the holder of a 
Premises Licence including late night refreshment.

35. Trading Standards as a Responsible Authority under the Licensing Act 
2003 - Role and Current Update 

Jim Whiddett, Operations Manager at Kent Trading Standards gave a brief presentation to 
Members outlining the changes made to the service resulting from a recent comprehensive 
review.   

Kent had been split into two areas covering the East and West of the County.  The 
organisation, now located at one site in Ashford, had split all staff into 4 distinct teams 
covering various functions.  The Licensing function came under the auspices of the 
Consumer and Public Safety Team.

Mr Whiddett explained how trading standards had no problem at all in recruiting young 
people to assist in the investigation of underage sales of alcohol.  

The Chair thanked Mr Whiddett for his informative presentation.

36. Review of Statement of Licensing Policy under the Gambling  Act 2005 

The Committee was updated on the consultation exercise that had taken place on the 
proposed Statement of Licensing Policy under the Gambling Act 2005 that had been 
reviewed after the statutory three year period.  Most changes were administrative in nature 
however the draft policy also took account of two substantive new elements in the draft 5th 
edition Guidance to Licensing Authorities (GLA5).

(1) the requirement for local operator risk assessments;

(2) the ability of a local authority to create a Local Area Profile of local details, 
risks and concerns.  In Gravesham it was considered inappropriate to include 
such a profile at the current time or within the body of this policy as it would 
only represent a snapshot of its profile at a given point in time and require re-
consultation whenever updated.

On consideration of the consultation responses, it was recommended that draft policy be 
amended to more closely to reflect the now published GLA5 guidance and to make explicit 
reference to the Regulators Code.

Committee was reminded that under the Act a Licensing Authority had the ability to 
determine whether it wished to issue any casino premises licences if there were availability 
to do so.  

Recommended that Council

(1) approve the incorporation of the recommendations shown in Appendix 
3 to the report in its Statement of Licensing Policy; 

(2) extend the “no-casinos” resolution for a further period of three years.

Page 4



Licensing Committee 26.11.2015

3

37. Late Night Refreshment - Deregulation Options 

The Committee was updated on changes to the licensing requirements of late night 
refreshment under the Licensing Act 2003.   

The Deregulation Act 2015 gives discretionary powers to a Licensing Authority to exempt 
certain late night refreshment provision from the requirement to be licensed.

Resolved that 

(1) officers proceed with a more detailed examination of the options open to the 
Council as Licensing Authority and submit a further report to the Committee in 
March 2016;

(2) the report be noted.

Close of meeting 

The meeting ended at 8.24 pm.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Public
Key Decision: No

Gravesham Borough Council

Report to: Licensing Committee

Date: 7 March 2016

Reporting officer: Assistant Director (Communities)

Subject: National Scrap Metal Dealer Database

Purpose and summary of report: 
To advise Members of a new national database which aims to facilitate the sharing of 
information and intelligence relating to scrap metal dealers between the council and partner 
enforcement agencies to help tackle those involved in the illegal trade of scrap metal.

Recommendations:
To note the content of the report.

1. Background

1.1 British Transport Police prepared a business case in July 2014 for the following: 

A SMD National Database that will provide for the efficient sharing of intelligence 
and information between key agencies of all scrap metal dealers nationally, 
enhancing the overall picture of metal theft and its processing. Avoiding 
duplication and displacement of activities and to provide opportunities for 
enforcement and relevant prosecution 

1.2 A report from the British Transport Police states that, following a six-month pilot 
involving councils and police forces in the West Midlands & Staffordshire area, the 
scheme was been found to be efficient and effective and would consequently be 
rolled out nationally.

1.3 An email was received from British Transport Police (BTP) Detective Inspector 
Darren Gough on 25 November 2015 inviting the council to join the new national 
Scrap Metal Dealers Database.

1.4 Accompanying DI Gough’s email was a letter from the Local Government 
Associated, which is attached to this report as Appendix 2, supporting the scheme 
in which they say:

The new Scrap Metal Dealers’ Database is another vital part of the toolkit, giving 
properly interested parties greater access to relevant information that will help to 
quickly identify those traders who would seek to operate outside of the law, and 
helping to facilitate a timely response by the authorities to tackle such activity. 

Page 7 Agenda Item 6



2

1.5 Following internal consultation with the Assistant Director (Communities), the 
Chief Executive, Legal Services, Service Manager (IT Services), Kent Police and 
fellow members of the Kent and Medway Regulatory Licensing Steering Group, it 
was decided that the council would join the scheme.

1.6 Login details were received by the Licensing Manager on 16 December 2015.

2. E-CINS Database System

2.1 British Transport Police have entered into an agreement, funded for 3 years, for 
the E-CINS system to be used to host the Scrap Metal Dealer Database. 

2.2 E-CINS is a secure, encrypted cloud based case management system developed 
by Empowering Communities, a ‘not for profit’ organisation. It provides an 
opportunity for improved information sharing between partners, enabling a real-
time exchange of relevant information to facilitate quick time problem solving and 
risk management. 

2.3 E-CINS is currently used by a variety of Local Authorities, Police Forces and the 
Home Office to store and share data with partners. 

2.4 In relation to this scheme, the benefits of E-CINS include

2.4.1 An ability to identify applicants registered in other areas

2.4.2 A mechanism for secure and auditable information exchange

2.4.3 Notification to users via their regular email if there are any messages or 
tasks for them within the system

2.4.4 The generation of reports in the standard format required for Environment 
Agency Reporting. 

2.5 Further benefits are due to be created and announced when dealers are required 
to re-licence, starting in October 2016.

3. Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013

3.1 The Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 makes it a requirement for a scrap metal 
dealer to hold a licence in order to carry on its business as a dealer. 

3.2 Section 3 of the Act requires Local Authorities to be satisfied an applicant is a 
suitable person to operate as a dealer before they issue, or renew a licence. 

3.3 In deciding if an applicant is suitable the Local Authority can consider any 
information it considers relevant, including whether the dealer or their site 
manager has been convicted of a relevant offence or relevant enforcement action 
has been taken against them, and whether they have been refused a licence or 
environmental permit. 

3.4 Section 6 of the Act requires that local authorities must supply any information 
related to a scrap metal licence to any other local authority in England and Wales, 
the Environment Agency, Natural Resources Wales, or the Police upon request - 
E-CINS facilitates this exchange.

Page 8



3

4. BACKGROUND PAPERS

4.1 None

4.2 Anyone wishing to inspect background papers should, in the first place, be 
directed to Committee & Electoral Services who will make the necessary 
arrangements.

IMPLICATIONS APPENDIX 1APPENDIX 1

Legal The Council must act in accordance with relevant legislation, including the Scrap 
Metal Dealers Act 2013

The council has responsibilities under the Data Protection Act 1998 to ensure that 
personal data is processed in accordance with the Act.  Personal data will only be 
shared and exchanged in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998.

Finance and 
Value for 
Money 

There is no direct financial impact on the council; the project is funded for the next 
three years by the British Transport Police. 

There may be a fee for staying within the scheme after this time; however this is not 
yet known, there is no obligation to stay within the scheme and the council can 
withdraw from it at any time.

There is no impact on the council’s IT systems and servers, therefore avoiding any 
compatibility or cost issues.  The ECINS Database is a secure cloud based system 
accessed via the internet and provided by Empowering Communities, who provide 
a free helpdesk service.

Risk 
Assessment

The ECINS Database is a secure cloud based system accessed via the internet 
provided by Empowering Communities.  Usage has been approved by the Service 
Manager (IT Services).

The pilot in West Midlands and Staffordshire area trialled the system with positive 
outcome.

Screening for Equality ImpactsEquality 
Impact 
Assessment Question Answer Explanation

Page 9



a. Does the decision 
being made or 
recommended through 
this paper have 
potential to cause 
adverse impact or 
discriminate against 
different groups in the 
community?

No      

b. Does the decision 
being made or 
recommended through 
this paper make a 
positive contribution to 
promoting equality?

No     

c. What steps are you 
taking to mitigate, 
reduce, avoid or 
minimise the impacts 
identified above?

     

5.

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted 
in the table above

Corporate 
Business 
Plan

There are direct links to Corporate Objective 1 – Safer Gravesham and indirect 
links to Corporate Objective 4 – Sound and self-sufficient council

Crime and 
Disorder

Licensing regulation provides the Council with a means of reducing crime and 
disorder.

Page 10



 

Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ  T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk 
www.local.gov.uk 
Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd 
 

23 November 2015 
 
Dear Colleague, 
 
National Scrap Metal Dealers Database 
 
The Scrap Metal Dealers Act was introduced in 2013 following extensive lobbying by the LGA on 
behalf of local government, as well as the British Transport Police and the British Metals 
Recycling Association. 
 
The impact of this Act and the partnership working to implement it has been profound, resulting in 
a major reduction in thefts of scrap metal and the nuisance and distress this causes to 
communities. We have made metal more difficult to steal and less attractive to buy, removing the 
option of paying cash and requiring documentary verification of identity at the point of sale.  But it 
is important that momentum is maintained, and the sharing of information is crucial to this.     
 
To help you with this work, we are inviting local authorities to sign up to a confidential and secure 
database that will allow enforcement agencies to share and access information about 
enforcement activities, soft intelligence, and refused applications. The database has been fully 
funded for the next 3 years and there is no cost to the local authority to use it. The Home Office, 
which is the government department with responsibility for metal theft policy, supports the 
establishment of the database to help partners tackle those involved in the illegal trade of scrap 
metal through the effective sharing of information.  
 
A successful pilot of the system was run in 2014/2015 involving local authorities and the police in 
West Midlands and Staffordshire, and our aspiration is to now roll it out nationally. 
 
The database consists of a national multi-agency case management system with communication 
and tasking tools and an information sharing hub. It is a cloud-based system that sits separately 
from a council’s own IT systems and servers, avoiding any compatibility issues.  
 
The British Transport Police have taken lead responsibility on this work and will be sending 
communications to your metal theft licensing teams asking them to make contact and progress 
their involvement. We ask for your support for the project and ask you to forward your approval to 
the appropriate person in your council. 
 
The new Scrap Metal Dealers’ Database is another vital part of the toolkit, giving properly 
interested parties greater access to relevant information that will help to quickly identify those 
traders who would seek to operate outside of the law, and helping to facilitate a timely response 
by the authorities to tackle such activity. 
 
If you have any questions about the database, please contact darren.gough@btp.pnn.police.uk or 
ian.leete@local.gov.uk. 
  
Yours sincerely, 

 
Cllr Simon Blackburn      Paul Crowther OBE 
Chair, LGA Safer and Stronger Communities Board  Chief Constable 
Leader, Blackpool Council     British Transport Police 

Page 11

mailto:info@local.gov.uk
http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:darren.gough@btp.pnn.police.uk
mailto:ian.leete@local.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Public
Key Decision: No

Gravesham Borough Council

Report to: Licensing Committee

Date: 7 March 2016

Reporting officer: Assistant Director (Communities)

Subject: Changes to the licensing requirements of late night 
refreshment under the Licensing Act 2003

Purpose and summary of report: 
To provide a further update for Members on the most recent legislative changes to the 
Licensing Act 2003 made by the Deregulation Act 2015 along with further analysis of the 
deregulation options open to the Council as Licensing Authority, including consultation with 
key partners.  

Recommendations:
(1) That Members consider the content of the report, in conjunction with the information 

included within the report presented to Licensing Committee on 26 November 2015.
(2) Licensing Committee to agree that no exemptions to the licensing of late night 

refreshment are pursued for implementation within the borough at the current time.

1. Background

1.1 Late Night Refreshment (LNR) is a licensable activity under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003 (LA03) and therefore requires a premises licence, which is 
subject to an annual retainer fee. Fees for new premises licences and for annual 
retainer are based on the rateable value of the premises and set by statute.  

1.2 Schedule 2 to the Licensing Act 2003 contains the framework for the regulation of 
the provision of late night refreshment.  LNR is defined as the supply of hot food or 
hot drink on or from premises to members of the public between 11pm and 5am 
for consumption on or off the premises.  There are a number of statutory 
exemptions which apply to particularly low risk situations.

1.3 The provision of LNR is regulated primarily because it is often linked to alcohol 
fuelled crime and disorder in the night-time economy, such as fast food takeaways 
where late night drinkers may congregate. In Gravesham this type of problem has 
been of concern to the council, police and the public. This has resulted in some of 
these premises being required, by condition, to have door supervisors, incident 
books and/or CCTV in place.

Page 13 Agenda Item 7



2

2. Deregulation Act 2015

2.1 The Deregulation Act 2015 (“the Act”) received Royal Assent on 26 March 2015 
and provides for the removal or reduction of burdens on businesses, civil society, 
individuals, public sector bodies and the taxpayer. 

2.2 The Act also provides for a duty on those exercising specified regulatory functions 
to have regard to the desirability of promoting economic growth.  Members are 
however also reminded of the statutory duty to promote the four licensing 
objectives

2.3 Section 71 of the Act came into force on 1 October and amends Schedule 2 of 
LA03 to provide licensing authorities with a discretionary power to exempt 
premises in a designated area, of a particular type, and/or during a period 
between 11pm and 5am from the requirement to hold a premises licence for the 
provision of LNR.

2.4 Licensing authorities do not have to use the exemptions at all and can continue to 
require all late night refreshment providers to be licensed. Any deregulation must 
only be where deemed appropriate on a risk assessed basis, and bearing in mind 
the four licensing objectives.

2.5 Existing late night refreshment licences for premises that become exempt would 
remain extant (unless surrendered); however there would be no requirement on 
the licence holders who are solely licenced for LNR to pay annual retainer fees. 
Also any conditions on a licence that relate solely to late night refreshment will 
have no effect during the period of exemption.

3. The exemption process

3.1 The decision to make an exemption is a licensing function that licensing 
authorities should include within their statement of licensing policy. It would 
therefore be subject to the statutory consultation process with at least the other 
responsible authorities and relevant parties as set out in section 5 of the 2003 Act.

3.2 When applying the exemptions the licensing authority must publicise the 
exemption to ensure that those who may affected benefit from it.

3.3 Licensing authorities can then review exemptions at any time to time to change 
the times, locations or premises types.  However, the late night refreshment 
exemptions are not made on a case by case basis and there is no recourse to 
bring individual problematic premises back into the licensing regime. In such 
cases, the licensing authority would therefore have to take a decision about the 
entire exemption and apply it across the whole area, updating their statement of 
licensing policy accordingly. Alternatively, depending on the scale of a problem, 
other powers could be used such as those provided by the Anti-social Behaviour, 
Crime and Policing Act 2014 and Environmental Protection Act 1990.

4. Premises licensed for Late Night Refreshment only in Gravesham

4.1 The report to Licensing Committee on 26 November 2015 advised that, out of the 
110 licenced premises in Gravesham whose licence includes LNR alongside other 
licensable activities, e.g. the supply of alcohol, only nineteen are licensed purely 
for LNR.  

Page 14



3

4.2 Of these nineteen, only one (a service/fuel station), with an annual retainer fee of 
£295, falls within the types of premises which could benefit from a premises-
based exemption.

4.3 It would not therefore be possible to deregulate the other eighteen premises, all of 
which are takeaway food establishments (mostly located within the town centre 
area, without applying an area or time based exemption.

5. Initial Evaluation

5.1 At their meeting of 26 November 2015, Members of the Licensing Committee 
agreed with officer recommendations that the exemption of LNR premises by 
geographic area or opening/operating time were not suitable paths to pursue due 
to the reasons outlined in the previous report and discussed at the meeting.

5.2 Members additionally noted that, as the LNR licensing regime was primarily aimed 
at takeaway food premises, applying an exemption which included such premises, 
especially within the town centre area, would be unlikely to be in accordance with 
the promotion of the licensing objectives.

5.3 With regard to the premises types possible for exemption; the community type 
premises (church halls, village halls, schools, hospitals, local authority premises) 
have shown little past interest in offering LNR and would thus be unlikely to 
benefit from any exemption in financial or practical terms.

5.4 Some Members advised that they felt there was little justification to make any 
exemptions.  It was however agreed that officers would proceed with a more 
detailed examination of the options open to the Council, particularly in relation to 
premises-based exemptions, and bring a further report to the meeting of the 
Licensing Committee on 7 March 2016 to allow them to make a more informed 
decision.

6. Further Evaluation

6.1 The matter was discussed at the December meeting of the Kent & Medway 
Regulatory Licensing Steering Group (K&MRLStGp) whose role includes the 
identification of issues on which a consistent countywide approach is considered 
appropriate. Consistency of approach is beneficial to applicants in that it avoids 
confusion for businesses operating in more than one local authority area.

6.2 Whilst many of the licensing authorities’ representatives in attendance at the 
K&MRLStGp meeting were unable to comment definitively on the likely decision of 
their respective Licensing Committees, those who were confirmed that they would 
not be deregulating LNR.  The general consensus amongst the others was that it 
would be unlikely that they would deregulate LNR at the current time. 

6.3 For many premises licenced solely for LNR, the conditions of their premises 
licence are heavily relied upon by Kent Police and Licensing Authorities for the 
regulation of anti-social behaviour in the night time economy under the prevention 
of crime and disorder licensing objective.  The suspension of such conditions 
would impede the ability to effectively regulate ASB, which remains a key priority 
of the Dartford and Gravesham Community Safety Partnership.

6.4 Any conditions on a premises licence relating solely to LNR would cease to apply 
for as long as an exemption is in place. As exemptions are not made on a case by 

Page 15



4

case basis there would be no recourse to bring individual premises back into the 
licensing regime if there was a problem with those particular premises.  Kent 
Police have expressed concerns over the potential difficulties licensing authorities 
would therefore face in re-regulating LNR as they would then have to take a 
decision about the entire exemption and apply it across the whole area.

6.5 The decision to make an exemption is a licensing function that the council would 
need to include within its Statement of Licence Policy.  It is therefore subject to a 
statutory consultation process with other responsible authorities and interested 
parties.  This is a time-intensive process with cost implications, as is then taking 
steps to ensure that local trade are made aware of any change.

6.6 Kent Police have advised that they are unlikely to offer any further opinion on any 
proposed deregulation prior to any statutory consultation.

6.7 On balance it is considered that very little benefit would be derived from trade or 
communities groups by deregulation of LNR in the Gravesham area. This needs 
to be considered, balanced against the negative effects on responsible authorities 
who would lose a tool in their armoury for dealing with LNR premises that are 
problematical. 

6.8 Also with any form of selective deregulation within the borough, whether by 
location, timing or premises type, there is the possibility that this could create 
confusion and resentment among the trade

6.9 It is therefore recommended that, at this time, Gravesham does not take up any of 
the LNR deregulation options offered by the legislative changes.

6.10 Officers will of course keep a watching brief on what happens elsewhere in the 
county and nationally where any such deregulation does take place, and bring 
further reports to Licensing Committee should there be any useful learning points 
that could change our stance.

7. BACKGROUND PAPERS

7.1 Home Office Guidance on the licensing of late night refreshment – available to 
view or download from: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/464
869/Guidance_on_the_licensing_of_late_night_refreshment.pdf

7.1 Report to Licensing Committee 26 November 2015 ‘Changes to the licensing 
requirements of late night refreshment under the Licensing Act 2003’ –  – 
available to view or download via the below link then clicking on Item No 37: 
http://web.gravesham.gov.uk/democracy/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=124&MId=24
35&Ver=4

7.2 Anyone wishing to inspect background papers should, in the first place, be 
directed to Committee & Electoral Services who will make the necessary 
arrangements.

Page 16

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/464869/Guidance_on_the_licensing_of_late_night_refreshment.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/464869/Guidance_on_the_licensing_of_late_night_refreshment.pdf
http://web.gravesham.gov.uk/democracy/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=124&MId=2435&Ver=4
http://web.gravesham.gov.uk/democracy/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=124&MId=2435&Ver=4


5

IMPLICATIONS APPENDIX 1Appendix 1

APPENDIX 1

Legal The Council must act in accordance with relevant legislation. 

The powers outlined in this report are entirely discretionary; licensing authorities do 
not have to use any of the exemptions at all and can continue to require all late 
night refreshment premises to be licensed. 

The Deregulation Act 2015 requires licensing authorities to consider deregulation 
where appropriate; however the Licensing Act 2003 requires licensing authorities to 
carry out its functions with a view to promoting the licensing objectives.  A balance 
must therefore be struck between the two statutory requirements.

Any proposed exemptions would first require an amendment being made to the 
council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and would therefore be subject to a 
statutory consultation process.

Any exemptions would apply to Temporary Events Notices as well as to Premises 
Licences

The decision to grant exemptions can be delegated to Licensing Committee or an 
Officer.

Finance and 
Value for 
Money 

Any consultation exercise in connection with a proposed exemption would be 
undertaken within existing budgets.  It is however a relatively time-intensive 
process which has cost implications in terms of officer time.

The maximum loss of licensing income would be if we exempted all LNR premises 
right across the borough. This would be £3,210pa. This option is not recommended 
for other reasons than the financial loss to the council.

The total loss of licensing income if we exempted on a premises type basis would 
be £295pa.based on current licences held. 

Any reduction in income will have a detrimental effect on the Council’s Medium 
Term Plan and would require remedial action from alternative sources. 

Risk 
Assessment

There are four Licensing Objectives which underpin the licensing regime and which 
must be promoted:

1. Prevention of crime and disorder
2. Prevention of public nuisance
3. Protection of public safety
4. Protection of children from harm

Statutory Guidance issued under s.182 of LA03 suggests that the key licensing 
objectives relating to the provision of LNR are 1 and 2 (the prevention of crime and 
disorder and the prevention of public nuisance, respectively).  

The Home Office have stated that:

“The provision of late night refreshment is regulated primarily because it is often 
linked to alcohol-fuelled crime and disorder in the night-time economy, such as at 
fast-food takeaways where late-night drinkers congregate. However, these 

Page 17



6

safeguards may not be needed everywhere or for every type of late night 
refreshment business. For example, some late-night cafés serving hot drinks after 
11pm may be located nowhere near pubs and nightclubs or areas associated with 
alcohol-related crime and disorder.” 

Any potential adverse impact on the prevention of crime and disorder or the 
regulation of ASB would be contrary to both the licensing objectives and a key 
priority area of the Dartford and Gravesham Community Safety Partnership.

Our analysis is that a geographical or time based exemption of LNR premises 
carries too great a risk of detrimental effect on the licensing objectives, leaving the 
responsible authorities with fewer options for remedial action. 

Our analysis of the possible exemptions based on premises type is that there would 
be minimal benefit to local trade/community groups based on our current licensed 
premises profile and that it is therefore not an option to be pursued at present.

Screening for Equality ImpactsEquality 
Impact 
Assessment Question Answer Explanation

a. Does the decision 
being made or 
recommended through 
this paper have 
potential to cause 
adverse impact or 
discriminate against 
different groups in the 
community?

No      

b. Does the decision 
being made or 
recommended through 
this paper make a 
positive contribution to 
promoting equality?

No     

c. What steps are you 
taking to mitigate, 
reduce, avoid or 
minimise the impacts 
identified above?

     

8.

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted 
in the table above

Corporate 
Business 
Plan

There are direct links to Corporate Objective 1 – Safer Gravesham 

Crime and 
Disorder

Licensing regulation provides the Council with a means of reducing crime and 
disorder as well as an ability to protect vulnerable persons

Page 18



Classification: Public
Key Decision: No

Gravesham Borough Council

Report to: Licensing Committee

Date: 7 March 2016

Reporting officer: Assistant Director (Communities)

Subject: Response to Gambling Commission consultation on where 
gaming machines can be played

Purpose and summary of report: 

1. To advise Members of proposed changes to the Gambling Commission’s statutory 
Guidance to Licence Authorities (GLA) and Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice 
(LCCP) relating to non-remote betting, bingo and casino operators, and how they 
make gaming machines available for use on their premises.

2. To advise Members of the council’s response to the Gambling Commission’s 
consultation on the proposed changes.

Recommendations:
That Members note the content of the report.

1. Background

1.1 The Gambling Commission licenses and regulates all commercial gambling within 
Great Britain with the exception of spread betting, which is regulated by the 
Financial Conduct Authority (FCA). 

1.2 Section 20 of the Gambling Act 2005 (the Act) establishes the Gambling 
Commission as the national regulatory body for gambling, whose functions under 
the Act include:

 licensing operators and individuals
 monitoring compliance with licence conditions and the law
 investigation and enforcement, both in relation to licensed operators and 

illegal (unlicensed) gambling
 providing advice to central and local government on the incidence, 

manner, effects and regulation of gambling

1.3 In exercising its functions, the Commission must aim to pursue the licensing 
objectives of: 

Page 19 Agenda Item 8



2

 preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being 
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime 

 ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way 
 protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 

exploited by gambling

1.4 The provision of gaming machines is strictly controlled by the Act.  Gaming 
machines are categorised depending on the maximum stakes and maximum 
prizes; ranging from category A machines (highest stakes and prizes) to category 
D machines (lowest stakes and prizes).  

1.5 It is fundamental to the control of machine gambling under the Act that particular 
categories of machines may only be provided in particular numbers and in 
particular types of premises.  

1.6 Ensuring that category B gaming machines (which include Fixed Odds Betting 
Terminals – FOTBs) are only made available in accordance with the licensing 
objectives is therefore a priority for the Gambling Commission.

1.7 The Commission previously shared their intention to review the existing LCCP and 
GLA documents in order to ensure the regulatory framework governing the 
availability of gaming machines remains effective.

1.8 Having considered the outcome of regulatory casework and emerging business 
models they have concluded that existing controls are insufficiently robust to 
enable effective enforcement both legally and operationally. Accordingly they have 
developed proposals for a revised regulatory framework with the aim of achieving 
the following policy objectives:

 with very few low-risk exceptions, gambling should be confined to 
dedicated gambling premises i.e. casino, betting or bingo premises

 distinctions between different types of licensed gambling premises are 
maintained

 gambling activities are supervised appropriately
 within bingo, betting and casino premises, gaming machines must only be 

made available in combination with the non-remote gambling facilities 
named on the operating licence

1.9 To achieve the above objectives it is important that betting, bingo and casino 
premises are, in both their appearance and function, distinctive premises to be 
used for those specific gambling activities. 

1.10 The Commission consider the above strands taken together identify the key 
characteristics of the environments in which category B gaming machines should 
be made available.  They have, accordingly, prepared a collection of regulatory 
proposals aimed at ensuring the above objectives are embedded consistently 
across the gambling industry by distinguishing between different types of 
gambling premises to allow for the strict control of the provision of category B, and 
indeed all other categories of, gaming machines.

2. Consultation

2.1 Due to this being a contentious area of policy in the past, the Commission have 
consulted with all interested parties; focussing on gambling operators, those with 

Page 20



3

an interest in the regulation of gambling, and licensing authorities, on how best to 
achieve the above policy objectives.

2.2 The consultation document sets out proposed amendments to the LCCP, that 
apply to gambling operators licensed by the Commission, and proposed 
amendments to the Commission’s statutory GLA (see Background Papers – 
below).

2.3 Following this consultation, and taking into account the responses received, the 
Commission expect to introduce new and amended licence conditions and code of 
practice provisions. The new/amended provisions are expected to come into force 
later in 2016. Any amendments to the GLA will come into effect at the same time.

3. Gravesham Borough Council’s consultation response

3.1 A draft response to the consultation, in support of the proposals, was prepared by 
the Licensing Manager in consultation with the Assistant Director (Communities) 
and Legal Services.

3.2 Management Team endorsed the draft response at their meeting of Tuesday 26 
January.

3.3 Councillor Craske, as the Chair of the Licensing Committee; Councillor Jassal, as 
the Portfolio Holder for Business Development, and; Councillor Cubitt, as the 
Leader of the Council, were subsequently consulted.  No response was received 
from Cllr Jassal; however Cllrs Craske and Cubitt further endorsed the council’s 
consultation response in support of the Commission’s proposals.

3.4 The approved consultation response was submitted to the Gambling Commission 
on Monday 8 February.

3.5 A copy of the response is attached to this Report as Appendix 2.

4. BACKGROUND PAPERS

4.1 The Consultation document from the Gambling Commission on Controlling where 
gaming machines may be played can be found at:

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/pdf/Consultations/Controlling-where-gaming-
machines-may-be-played-consultation.pdf

4.2 Anyone wishing to inspect background papers should, in the first place, be 
directed to Committee & Electoral Services who will make the necessary 
arrangements.

Page 21

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/pdf/Consultations/Controlling-where-gaming-machines-may-be-played-consultation.pdf
http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/pdf/Consultations/Controlling-where-gaming-machines-may-be-played-consultation.pdf


4

IMPLICATIONS APPENDIX 1APPENDIX 1

Legal The Council must act in accordance with relevant legislation, including the 
Gambling Act 2005.   The Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Licence 
Authorities, as may be amended by the Commission from time to time, is a 
statutory document, issued under s.25 of the Gambling Act 2005, to which the 
council must have regard in exercising its functions under the Act.

Finance and 
Value for 
Money 

There is no financial impact on the council.

Risk 
Assessment

Clearer guidance on the ways in which different types of licensed gambling 
premises can be distinguished will assist the council in promoting the licensing 
objectives through the advisory and regulatory work it carries out in relation to 
gambling premises (particularly in relation to the categories and numbers of gaming 
machines that can be played in each type of premises) and therefore also reduce 
the risk of complaint.

Screening for Equality ImpactsEquality 
Impact 
Assessment Question Answer Explanation

a. Does the decision 
being made or 
recommended through 
this paper have 
potential to cause 
adverse impact or 
discriminate against 
different groups in the 
community?

No      

b. Does the decision 
being made or 
recommended through 
this paper make a 
positive contribution to 
promoting equality?

No     

c. What steps are you 
taking to mitigate, 
reduce, avoid or 
minimise the impacts 
identified above?

     

5.

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted 
in the table above

Page 22



Corporate 
Business 
Plan

There are direct links to Corporate Objective 1 – Safer Gravesham and indirect 
links to Corporate Objective 4 – Sound and self-sufficient council

Crime and 
Disorder

Fulfilling duties under the Gambling Act 2005 is of direct relevance to the council’s 
obligations under s.17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 in that the objectives of 
the Act are:

 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder, being 
associated with crime and disorder or being used to support crime

 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way
 Protecting children and other vulnerable from being harmed or exploited by 

gambling

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



                     

 

 

 

Controlling where gaming machines may be 
played 

Consultation – November 2015 
 
 
1.1 This template is provided for responses to the Gambling Commission’s consultation on 

proposed amendments to the Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice (LCCP) that apply 
to gambling operators licensed by the Gambling Commission. It also sets out proposed 
amendments to the Commission’s statutory Guidance to Licensing Authorities (GLA). 
Please use this template if possible.   

 
1.2 The templates leaves space for responses to all the questions asked in the consultation. 

However, we understand that respondents to the consultation may wish to answer only 
those questions which are relevant for their business, organisation or interests.   

 
1.3 All responses should be sent by email to consultation@gamblingcommission.gov.uk  

by Monday 22 February, 2016. 
 
 Alternatively, responses can be sent by post to: 

Tom Deery 
Consultation co-ordinator 
Gambling Commission 
Victoria Square House 
Victoria Square 
Birmingham B2 4BP 

 

Name:   Mark Lees, Licensing Manager  

Organisation:   Gravesham Borough Council  

Email address:  mark.lees@gravesham.gov.uk  

 

1.4 If you are responding on behalf of an organisation, please indicate which type of 
organisation: 

Licensed operator  Professional services provider  

Trade association  Campaigning or political group  

National government body  Charity or support group  

Local government body  Academic institution  

Other (please specify)  

 

1.5     If you are responding as an individual, please indicate your own interest:  

N/A 
 

 

Page 25

mailto:consultation@gamblingcommission.gov.uk


2 

 

Policy objectives 
 •   With very few low risk exceptions, non-remote gambling should be confined 

to dedicated gambling premises 
 • The distinctions between different types of licensed gambling premises are 

maintained  
 • Gambling activities are supervised appropriately 
 • Within casino, bingo and betting premises, gaming machines are only made 

available in combination with the named non-remote activity of the operating 
licence. 

 
Q1.  Do you agree or disagree in whole or in part with the above policy objectives?  Please give 

your reasons as appropriate.  

 

Agree in full.   

 

 

‘Primary gambling activity’ 
 

Q2.  Do you agree or disagree with the Commission removing earlier requirements, guidance 
and advice relating to ‘primary gambling activity’ from the LCCP, GLA and other related 
materials?  

 

Agree.  Removing earlier requirements, guidance and advice relating to ‘primary gambling activity’ 
from the LCCP, GLA and other related materials will help to avoid confusion.     

 

 

Social responsibility code provisions 
 

  Q3.  What are your views on the proposed use of social responsibility code provisions to deliver 
the policy objectives? 

 

The use of SR code provisions are welcomed due to the requirement to comply with them.   

 

 

Q4.  Do you have any comments on the drafting of the proposed social responsibility code 
provisions? 

 

The proposed wording for each appears to be sufficiently clear to promote the licensing objectives 
without being so prescriptive as to be excessively burdensome.  There may however be some 
room for interpretation of what constitutes ‘substantive facilities’ and ‘appropriate supervision.’ 

 

 

Q5.  What impact do you consider the proposed provisions will have on the affected sectors and 
are they sufficient to deliver the Commission’s underlying policy objectives below? 

 
 • With very few low risk exceptions, non-remote gambling should be confined 

to dedicated gambling premises 
 • The distinctions between different types of licensed gambling premises are 

maintained  
 • Gambling activities are supervised appropriately 
 • Within casino, bingo and betting premises, gaming machines are only made 

Page 26



3 

 

available in combination with the named non-remote activity of the operating 
licence 

 

It is not considered that the proposed provisions would require any more than what should 
reasonably be expected of responsible operators anyway.   As mentioned in the response to Q4, 
any variations in the wording of the proposed SR code provisions to make them less ambiguous 
would be welcomed, but it is acknowledged there would be a risk of being overly prescriptive and 
that striking a balance is difficult. 

 

 

Q6(i)  What are your views in relation to the Commission considering the use made of the named 
non-remote facilities as an indicator of whether gaming machines are being provided in 
combination with the named activity in a substantive manner? 

 

This seems wholly appropriate. 

 

 

Q6(ii) If appropriate,  should the Commission include reference to the use made of the non-
remote named facilities on a case by case basis via specific conditions, or in a more 
general sense via one of the two alternatives below? 

 
• Social responsibility code provision 

  Ordinary code provision 

 

Because of the mandatory nature of SR codes, there is less room for manoeuvre, compared to 
Ordinary codes, which should assist in meeting the policy objectives and ensuring the promotion of 
the objectives. 

 

The use of specific case by case conditions would undoubtedly be even more beneficial in meeting 
the policy objectives and ensuring compliance at each premises. 

 

 
Business plans and applications for licences 

 

Q7.  Do you agree with the proposed approach, where judged necessary, to draw out key 
elements of an applicant’s business plan and use specific licence conditions to ensure they 
reflect the future use of the operating licence? 

 

Yes. 

 

 
Guidance to licensing authorities 

 

Q8.  Do you have any views or comments on the proposed guidance to licensing authorities?           

 

We are supportive of the proposed guidance. 

 

 

Q9.  Is there any additional guidance that would assist licensing authorities to apply appropriate 

Page 27



4 

 

licensing decisions relating to the availability of gaming machines in licensed premises? 

 

None. 

 

 

1.6     Please note that responses may be made public or published in a summary of responses 

of the consultation unless you state clearly that you wish your response or name to be 
treated confidentially. Confidential responses will be included in any statistical summary of 
numbers of comments received. If you are replying by email or via the website, unless you 
specifically include a request to the contrary in the main text of your submission, the 
Commission will assume your consent overrides any confidentiality disclaimer that is 
generated by your organisation’s IT system.  

 

1.7      Any information or material sent to us and which we record may be subject to the Freedom 

of Information Act 2000 (FOIA). The Commission’s policy on release of information is 
available on request or by reference to our website at www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk. 
The Commission will treat information marked confidential accordingly and will only 
disclose that information to people outside the Commission where it is necessary to do so 
in order to carry out the Commission’s functions or where the Commission is required by 
law to disclose the information. As a public authority the Commission must comply with the 
requirements of FOIA and must consider requests for information made under the Act on a 
case-by-case basis. Therefore when providing information, if you think that certain 
information may be exempt from disclosure under FOIA, please annotate the response 
accordingly so that we may take your comments into account.  

 

1.8      All information provided to the Commission will be processed in accordance with the Data 

Protection Act 1998. However, it may be disclosed to government departments or 
agencies, local authorities and other bodies when it is necessary to do so in order to carry 
out the functions of the Commission and where the Commission is legally required to do 
so.  

Page 28



1

Licensing Panel

Monday, 14 December 2015 10.00 am

Present:

Cllr Harold Craske (Chair) 

Cllrs: John Loughlin
Lesley Boycott  

Mark Lees Licensing Manager 
Mike Crawford Senior Legal Advisor 
Allan Glasson Senior Environmental Health Officer 
Ben Clarke Committee & Scrutiny Assistant  

Also in attendance: 

Police Sergeant Gary Brimson Acting Inspector North Kent Police 
PC Claire Cossar North Kent Police Licensing Officer
PC Chris Carter North Kent Police Licensing Officer 
Adekunle Olufemi Adeparusi Premises Licence Holder
Emmanual Feyistan Designated Premises Supervisor 

1. Apologies for absence 

An apology of absence was received from Kent Fire & Rescue Service.  

2. Declarations of Interest 

No declarations of interest were made.    

3. GM/PRE/14/0006 - New Inn, 1 Milton Road, Gravesend, Kent DA12 2RE 

The Panel considered an application by North Kent Police for the review of the Premises 
License GM/PRE/14/0006 granted under section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of 
The New Inn, 1 Milton Road, Gravesend, Kent DA12 2RE. 

The Panel also considered whether or not to reject an application to vary the Designated 
Premises Supervisor at the premises. 

The grounds for applying for the review were in relation to the licensing objectives of:

 The prevention of crime and disorder 
 Public Safety
 The prevention of public nuisance 

Page 29 Agenda Item 9a



Licensing Panel 14.12.2015

2

North Kent Police reported that the grounds for review can be summarised as a general 
disregard for the aforementioned Licensing Objectives and multiple breaches of licence 
conditions including, but not limited to, those relating to the provision of CCTV and 
operating/opening hours resulting in a lack of faith in the ability of the current licence holder 
(who is also the DPS) to properly manage the premises.   

The following remedial action was requested by North Kent Police to be considered by the 
Panel: 

I. Revocation of the Premises License 

If the above was not the decision of the Licensing Panel, North Kent Police requested:

I. Removal of the Designated Premises Supervisor
II. Alterations to the hours authorised for all licensable activities to show the following:

 Sunday to Saturday 10:00am-00:00am 

The officers of North Kent Police and Mr Adekunle Olufemi Adeparusi and Mr Emmanual 
Feyistan addressed the Panel. 

The Panel adjourned to consider its decision. 

Determinations

Review of Premises Licence

Having considered the information provided in the written report compiled by the Licensing 
Manager and presented to the Licensing Panel; the evidence given by North Kent Police; 
representations from Mr Adekunle Olufemi Adeparusi and Mr Emmanual Feyistan; the letter 
from the Senior Environmental Health Officer to the DPS and the representation from Kent 
Fire & Rescue Service, the Licensing Objectives and the range of remedial options available 
to them under the Licensing Act 2003 the Panel came to the decision that the Licence would 
not be revoked but that the times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable 
activities will, with immediate effect, be reduced to the following:

Indoor sporting events 
Monday to Sunday 10:00 to 23:00

Live music, recorded music and provision for making music
Monday to Sunday 12:00 to 23:00

Sale of alcohol
Monday to Sunday 10:00 to 23:00

And that the Premises Licence be further altered to reduce the permitted opening hours to 
the following with immediate effect:

The opening hours of the premises

Page 30



Licensing Panel 14.12.2015

3

Monday to Sunday 10:00 to 23:30

The Chair of the Panel gave the following reasons for their decisions:

1. The Panel were satisfied that Premises Licence Holder had shown a clear disregard 
toward the licence conditions and demonstrated a clear lack of understanding of the 
licensing objectives.

2. The Panel were satisfied that breaches of conditions had occurred, including those 
relating to:

 The keeping of registers (Condition 3)
 The closure of doors and windows during regulated entertainment (Condition 4)
 CCTV (Condition 6)
 The requirement for signage advising patrons of any admission restrictions 

(Condition 15)

3. The Panel accepted the evidence put forward by Kent Police of drug use at the 
premises and that put forward by the Senior Environmental Health Officer of 
excessive noise emanating from the premises.

Before announcing the Panel’s decision, the Chair ran through the range of options available 
to the Panel and made it clear that serious consideration was given to the suspension or 
revocation of the premises licence.  

Removal of Designated Premises Supervisor

Having considered the information provided in the written report compiled by the Licensing 
Manager and presented to the Licensing Panel; the evidence given by North Kent Police and 
representations from Mr Adekunle Olufemi Adeparusi and Mr Emmanuel Feyisetan, the 
Panel came to the decision that Mr Emmanuel Feyisetan would be permitted to remain in 
post as the Designated Premises Supervisor.

The Chair of the Panel advised that this was because the Panel were not satisfied Mr 
Feyisetan had been responsible for failing to promote the crime and disorder licensing 
objective owing, at least in part, to the fact that he had only taken over as the Designated 
Premises Supervisor on 27 November.

Close of meeting 

The meeting ended at 13:02pm. 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Licensing Panel

Monday, 11 January 2016 10.00 am

Present:

Cllr Harold Craske (Chair) 

Cllrs: John Loughlin
Lesley Boycott  

Mark Lees Licensing Manager 
Mike Crawford Senior Legal Advisor 
Ben Clarke Committee & Scrutiny Assistant  

Also in attendance: 

Cllr Peter Scollard Councillor
Mr Waseem Sherwani Welcome Skills Agent (Applicants Agent)
Mr S.R. Ramanan Objector 
Mr Goraya Objector 
Mrs Rita Cook Objector 
Mrs Nibedini Piratheepan Applicant
Mr Piratheepan Applicant’s Husband

4. Apologies 

No apologies of absence were received. 

5. Declarations of Interest 

No declarations of interest were made.  

6. GM/PRE/15/0009 - Gravesend Food & Wine, Ground Floor and Basement, 
49 London Road, Northfleet, Kent DA11 9JR - report herewith. 

The Panel considered an application by Mrs Nibedini Piratheepan for the grant of a new 
Premises Licence GM/PRE/14/0011 under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of 
the premises known Gravesend Food & Wine, Ground Floor and Basement, 49 London 
Road, Northfleet, Kent DA11 9JR.          

The application was for the sale and supply of alcohol off the premises only between the 
following times:

 07:00 and 23:00 Monday to Saturday
 07:00 and 22:30 on Sundays 

Page 33 Agenda Item 9b



Licensing Panel 11.01.2016

2

Members were advised that Kent Police were not opposed to the application under the times 
stated but seek the attachment of the following conditions to clarify those proposed in the 
operating schedule, and assist in the promotion of the licensing objectives:

1. All persons that sell or supply alcohol to customers must have licensing training.

 Training should take place within six weeks of employment and any new employees 
will be supervised until the training has taken place.

 Refresher training should be repeated a minimum of every six months or earlier if 
required due to changes of legislation.

 Training records must be kept on the premises and shall contain the nature, content 
and frequency of all training.

 Records must be made available for inspection by Police, Police Licensing Officer 
and authorised officers from the Local Authority upon request either electronically
or hard copy.

2. Any person identified to the venue by Kent Police as being involved or associated 
with Anti-Social Behaviour in the local area – will be refused sale of alcohol

3. There will be a minimum of one SIA registered door supervisor on duty and present 
at the premises whilst the venue is open and conducting licensable activity.

4. The premises licence holder or designated premises supervisor must keep an 
incident register. Staffs are to be trained to complete an incident book/records 
immediately after the incident but no later than the end of their shift.
The register must be kept on the premises and will detail

 Day, date and time of incident

 Nature of incident

 Resolution

 Each entry is to be checked and signed by the DPS/Licensee no later than 1 week 
after the entry has been made. The register must be made available to Police, Police 
Licensing Officers and authorised officers from the Local Authority either 
electronically or hard copy

5. CCTV will be provided in the form of a recordable system, capable of providing 
pictures of evidential quality in all lighting conditions particularly facial recognition.

 Cameras shall encompass all ingress and egress to the premises, fire exits and all 
areas where the sale and supply of alcohol occurs.

 Equipment must be maintained in good working order, be correctly time and date 
stamped, recordings MUST be kept on the hard drive and kept for a period of 31 
days and handed to Police upon reasonable request.

 The premises licence holder must ensure at all times a DPS or appointed member of 
staff is capable and competent at downloading CCTV footage in a recordable format 
to the Police and Local Authority upon reasonable request.

Page 34



Licensing Panel 11.01.2016

3

 In the event of technical failure of the CCTV equipment the premises licence holder 
or DPS must report the failure to the Police Licensing Officer within 24 hours unless 
the CCTV will be repaired before that time
(licensing.north.division@kent.pnn.police.uk)

6. A minimum of two staff members will be within the store at all times when licensable 
activity is taking place.

7. The Licence holder shall erect and maintain clear and prominent notices displayed at 
all exits requesting the public to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the 
premises and the area quietly.

The Licencing Manager gave a brief overview of the application to the Panel and clarified 
that a mistake had been made with regard to the proposed DPS; the proposed DPS is 
actually Mr Piratheepan. 

Mr Waseem Sherwani (Applicants Agent), Mr Ramanan (Objector) and Mr Goraya (Objector) 
addressed the Panel. 

The Chair read aloud a letter detailing the points of objection over the application from Mrs 
Cook (Objector) upon request from her to do so.

The Chair also allowed Cllr Scollard to address the Panel. 

The Panel adjourned to consider its decision. 

Determination

Having considered the information provided in the written report compiled by the Licensing 
Manager and presented to the Licensing Panel; the application; the comments from Mr 
Sherwani of Welcome Skills Ltd on behalf of the applicant; the written comments and 
proposed conditions from North Kent Police as a responsible authority; the representations 
and comments from interested parties living in the vicinity; the Council’s Statement of 
Licensing Policy; the statutory guidance of the Secretary of State and the licensing 
objectives, the Chair advised that the Panel had found no reason to refuse the application 
and granted the new Premises Licence subject to:

 the Mandatory conditions; 
 the conditions suggested by Kent Police on 15 December 2015 and agreed to by the 

applicant on the same date, and;
 such additional conditions as the authority considers necessary for the promotion of 

the licensing objectives and which are consistent with the operating schedule 
accompanying the application, including the inclusion of a condition requesting the 
operation of the ‘Challenge 25 ‘ scheme. 

The Chair reminded the parties present that the local residents are the eyes and ears of the 
borough and if they find any discrepancies or breaches of the conditions they can call the 
Premises Licence in for review.  The Chair also informed all parties of their right of appeal to 
the Magistrates Court. 

Page 35

mailto:licensing.north.division@kent.pnn.police.uk


Licensing Panel 11.01.2016

4

Close of meeting 

The meeting ended at 11:24am. 

Page 36



1

Licensing Panel

Monday, 25 January 2016 10.00 am

  Present:

Cllr Harold Craske (Chair) 

Cllrs: John Loughlin
Lesley Boycott 

Mark Lees Licensing Manager 
Mike Crawford 
Allan Glasson

Senior Legal Advisor 
Senior Environmental Health Officer

Chris Wakeford Committee Services Officer (Scrutiny)

 Also in attendance: 

Cllr Rob Halpin Representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises 
Gill Sherratt Licensing Consultant – Representing Elite Venue Centre Ltd
Victoria Gillham Designated Premises Supervisor - Elite Venue Centre Ltd 
Jagdip Bhathal
Mrs Lynda Coogan

Director – Elite Venue Centre Ltd
Local resident (living in the vicinity of the premises)

 Note: 21 people who live in the vicinity of the premises attended the meeting and sat in the   
 public gallery.

7. Apologies for absence 

No apologies of absence were received. 

8. Declarations of Interest 

No declarations of interest were made.    

9. GM/PRE/14/0011 - Elite Venue Centre Ltd, Dunkirk Close, Gravesend 
DA12 5ND 

The panel considered an application by Councillor Robert Halpin for a review of a premises 
Licence under section 51 of the 2003 Act. As a Ward Member for Singlewell, Councillor 
Halpin submitted the application in the capacity of a body representing persons living in the 
vicinity of the premises.

The ground for applying for the review was in relation to the licensing objective of: 

 The prevention of public nuisance

Page 37 Agenda Item 9c



Licensing Panel 25.01.2016

2

The applicant did not propose any remedial actions within the body of the application that 
they would consider to be appropriate to address the perceived problems and promote the 
licensing objectives.

Cllr Rob Halpin, Mrs Lynda Coogan, the Licensing Consultant, the Designated Premises 
Supervisor and the Director of Elite Venue Centre Ltd addressed the Panel.

The panel also considered an application from Licensing Matters, acting on behalf of the 
premises licence holder, to vary the premises licence under section 34 of the Licensing Act 
2003.

The application sought to vary the licence by the submission of a new floor plan to reflect the 
conversion of two fitness rooms into an additional function room and bar; shown on the 
proposed plan in Appendix 6 to the report, above Changing Rooms 1, 2, 3 & 4.

The Panel adjourned to consider its decision on both applications. 

Determination 

Application to review the Premises Licence 

Having considered the information provided in the written report compiled by the Licensing 
Manager and presented to the Licensing Panel; representations from 17 residents, Mr D 
Campbell on behalf of Ifield School and Kings Farm Primary School Federation Governing 
Body, Cllr Rob Halpin, Mrs Lynda Coogan, Gill Sherratt of Licensing Matters Ltd on behalf of 
premises licence holder and from Allan Glasson as a responsible authority and having taken 
into account the Local Statement of Licensing Policy, the Secretary of State Guidance 
issued under s. 182 of the Licensing Act 2003, the Human Rights Act and taking into 
account the licensing objective of the prevention of public nuisance and a stepped approach 
to enforcement;  the Panel came to the decision that the following conditions be added to the 
premises licence:

  Remove the second condition agreed with the Environment Health Department:

When determined by Gravesham Borough Council Assistant Director (Community) 
the level of internal amplified sound shall be restricted by the installation and use of a 
noise limiting device. The sound pressure level (LA Max) from any amplification 
system shall be determined by the Assistant Director (Communities) and any 
unauthorised adjustment of the level shall not be permitted.

 Replace the above condition with the following:

When determined by Gravesham Borough Council Assistant Director (Community) 
the level of internal amplified sound shall be restricted by the installation and use of a 
noise limiting device. This shall be installed, set and sealed at a level approved by an 

Page 38



Licensing Panel 25.01.2016

3

acoustic consultant in consultation with Gravesham Borough Council Assistant 
Director (Community).

The sound limiting device should be used at all times when relevant regulated
entertainment is taking place, including all externally promoted events.
Only the premises licence holder, or a nominated deputy, and the designated
premises supervisor shall have access to the sound limiting device

 The premises shall have a written dispersal policy, to be agreed in writing with the 
council’s Senior Environmental Health Officer, which will set out the steps that will be 
taken at the end of each trading session in order to minimize any noise, nuisance and 
anti-social behaviour when customers are leaving the premises.  Any subsequent 
variations will be subject to prior written approval from the council’s Senior 
Environmental Health Officer.  Records must be kept to show members of staff who have 
read and understood the policy.  All documentation required by this condition must be 
made available, by way of an electronic or hard copy, to Police, Police Licensing Officers 
or authorised officers from the Local Authority upon request.

Application to vary the Premises Licence

Having considered the information provided in the written report compiled by the Licensing 
Manager and presented to the Licensing Panel; representations from 3 residents, a petition 
with 43 signatures on it, Cllr Rob Halpin, Gill Sherratt of Licensing Matters Ltd on behalf of 
premises licence holder and from Allan Glasson as a responsible authority and having taken 
into account the Local Statement of Licensing Policy, the Secretary of State Guidance 
issued under s. 182 of the Licensing Act 2003, the Human Rights Act and taking into 
account the 4 licensing objectives;  the Panel granted the application to vary the licence by 
the submission of a new floor plan to reflect the conversion of two fitness rooms into an 
additional function room and bar; shown on the proposed plan in Appendix 6 to the report, 
above Changing Rooms 1, 2, 3 & 4.

The Chair advised that any appeal to the Panel’s decisions would need to be made to the 
Magistrates’ Court within 21 days.

Close of meeting 

The meeting ended at 12.00 pm

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 New National Scrap Metal Dealers Database - report herewith.
	Appendix 2

	7 Deregulation of Late Night Refreshment - report herewith.
	8 Response to Gambling Commission consultation on where gaming machines can be played - report herewith.
	Appendix 2

	9a Minutes of meeting Monday, 14 December 2015 of Licensing Panel
	9b Minutes of meeting Monday, 11 January 2016 of Licensing Panel
	9c Minutes of meeting Monday, 25 January 2016 of Licensing Panel

